

Bylaws

OF

CAROLINA REGIONAL SERVICE COMMITTEE, a North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation

ARTICLE I

Name and Character

1.01 Name. The name of the Corporation shall be CAROLINA REGIONAL SERVICE COMMITTEE, or such other names as may be determined by the Board of Directors.

1.02 Character. The Corporation shall be a nonprofit corporation formed to pursue the purposes set forth in its corporate charter, as properly amended from time to time. The objectives of this corporation, as such currently exist, shall be to provide services to the public and members of the Fellowship of Narcotics Anonymous. The purposes are to help make available the program of recovery that has been developed by the Fellowship of Narcotics Anonymous. This may be accomplished through public information efforts, the distribution and selling of literature, the holding of conventions, and such ancillary activities as may make it possible to help spread the message of recovery from addiction as is found in the program of Narcotics Anonymous.

1.03 Nonpartisan Activities. This Corporation has been formed under the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended, for the public purposes described above, and it shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of the publication or dissemination of materials with the purpose of attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office or for or against any cause or measure being submitted to the people for a vote.

ARTICLE II

Offices

2.01 Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of the Corporation ("principal office") is located at 1327 Beaman Place, Suite 9, Greensboro, North Carolina 27408. The Board of Directors may change the principal office from one location to another. Any change of this location shall be noted by the Secretary on these Bylaws opposite this section, or this section may be amended to state the new location.

2.02 Other Offices. The Board of Directors may, at any time, establish branch or subordinate offices at any place or places where the Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities.

ARTICLE III

Membership

3.01 Members Prohibited. The Corporation shall not have any members.

3.02 Effect of Prohibition. Any action which would otherwise require approval by a majority of all members or approval by the members shall require only approval by the Board of Directors. As provided in the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended, all rights which would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV

Directors

4.01 General Powers. Subject to the limitations of the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws and the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended, all corporate powers shall be exercised by and under the authority of the Board of Directors, and the management and affairs of the Corporation shall be controlled by the Board of Directors. Without prejudice to these general powers, and subject to the same limitations, the Directors shall have the power to:

(a) Select and remove all officers, agents, and employees of the Corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended, with the Articles of Incorporation, and with these By-Laws; and fix their compensation, if any.

(b) Change the principal executive office or the principal business office in the State of North Carolina from one location to another; cause the corporation to be qualified to do business in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and conduct business within or outside the State of North Carolina; and designate any place within or outside the State of North Carolina for the holding of any meeting or meetings, including annual meetings.

(c) Adopt, make, and use a corporate seal.

(d) Borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the Corporation and cause to be executed and delivered for the Corporation's purposes, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, and other evidence of debt and securities.

4.02 Number, Term and Qualifications. The number of Directors shall be the number of Directors elected from time to time in accordance with these Bylaws but shall never be less than three (3). The number of Directors may be increased or decreased from time to time by election in accordance with these Bylaws. Any person who would qualify for regular membership in any

of the Area Service Committees ("ASC") within the Carolina Region of Narcotics Anonymous, as such may exist from time to time pursuant to the Bylaws of such organizations, is eligible to be elected a Director of this Corporation although actual membership in such organizations is not required. All of the Area Service Representatives ("ASR's") for each ASC within the Carolina Region of Narcotics Anonymous shall serve on the Board until the expiration of their terms as ASR's. All other Board members shall serve one-year terms. Provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any ASR to serve consecutive or additional terms on the Board so long as such person remains an ASR or qualifies for regular membership in an ASC.

4.03 Election of Directors. The first Board of Directors of the Corporation shall consist of those persons named in its Charter. Thereafter, except as provided in Section 4.02 above and in Section 4.05 below, the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall consist of all the ASR's for each of the ASC's within the Carolina Region of Narcotics Anonymous and the elected corporate officers and subcommittee chairs of each RSC as such shall exist from time to time.

4.04 Removal and Resignation.

(a) The Board of Directors may declare vacant the office of any incumbent Director, other than ASR, who has been:

- (i) During the term of office declared of unsound mind by a final order of a court;
- (ii) Convicted of a felony while serving on the Board of Directors;
- (iii) Found by a final order or judgment of any court to have breached statutory duties relating to a Director's standard of conduct; or
- (iv) Found, after investigation by the Board of Directors, that such person has been using any drugs; or
- (v) Found by the Board of Directors to have failed to attend or participate in any two (2) or more consecutive meetings duly called by the Board of Directors as provided for herein, or four (4) such meetings in total during such person's term as a Director.
- (vi) Found by the Board of Directors, after investigation, to have failed to perform the duties (as created or assigned by the Board of Directors and listed herein or in other documents of the Board) of the position held by that Director for a period of four (4) months or a lesser period if the timely, proper functioning of the Board is threatened.

(b) No Director shall be removed without cause.

(c) The vote necessary to remove any Director on any of the foregoing causes shall be a majority of the other Directors present at a duly called and held meeting at which a quorum is present, or, in the alternative, such removal may be accomplished by the unanimous written consent of the other Directors without a meeting.

(d) An action challenging the validity of any removal of a Director must be commenced within six (6) months after the removal. After the six- (6-) month period, the removal is conclusively presumed valid, in the absence of fraud.

(e) Except as provided herein, any Director may resign by giving written notice to the Chairperson of the Board of Directors or the Secretary of the Corporation. The resignation shall be effective when the notice is given unless it specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective. If a Director's resignation is effective at a later time, the Board may elect a successor to take office as of the date when the resignation becomes effective.

4.05 Vacancies. (a) A vacancy or vacancies on the Board shall be deemed to exist on the occurrence of the following:

(i) the death, resignation, or removal for cause of any Director;

(ii) the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a Director pursuant to Section 4.04 above; or

(iii) the increase in the authorized number of directors.

(b) A vacancy of an ASR occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the ASC of that area. For all other vacancies and to the extent that the particular ASC does not name a new director within ten (10) days after removal of the Director, the vacancy may be filled by an affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors even though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. Such Director shall serve only until his/her replacement is selected and seated or, if sooner, until he/she resigns, refuses to serve or otherwise is unseated pursuant to these Bylaws. No reduction in the authorized number of Directors shall warrant removal of a director before the expiration of a director's term.

ARTICLE V Meetings of Directors

5.01 Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at least annually in July of each year for the purpose of electing officers and to transact such other business as comes before the meeting. In addition, the Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place for the holding of additional regular meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at any place within or outside the State of North Carolina that has been

designated, from time to time, by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such designation, regular meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Section 5.01, a regular or special meeting of the Board may be held at any place consented to in writing by all the Board members either before or after the meeting. If consents are given, they shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

5.02 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the Chairperson or any two (2) Directors. Such special meetings of the Board shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place, either within or without the State of North Carolina, as shall be agreed upon by a majority of the Directors entitled to vote thereat.

5.03 Adjournment. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours or such meeting was adjourned for lack of a quorum. If the original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of any adjournment to another time and place shall be given, before the time of the adjourned meeting, to the Directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

5.04 Notice of Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice.

The person or persons calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors shall, at least two (2) days before the meeting, give notice thereof by any usual means of communication. Such notice shall specify the purpose for which the meeting is called.

5.05 Waiver of Notice. Any Director may waive notice of any Directors' meeting held without proper call or notice, either before or after the meeting is held.

Attendance by a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the purpose of objection to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at such meeting.

Failure of a Director who did not attend a meeting held without proper call or notice to file with the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Corporation a written objection to the holding of the meeting or to any specific action so taken promptly after having knowledge of the action taken and of the insufficiency of notice shall constitute ratification of the action taken at the meeting.

5.06 Quorum. Two thirds (2/3) of the ASR Directors, as such shall exist from time to time, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors; provided however, that if the number of ASR Directors constitutes less than one third (1/3) of the total number of Directors on the Board, then at least one third (1/3) of all Directors shall constitute a quorum.

5.07 Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided by law or in this section, an act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be an act of the Board of Directors.

The vote of a majority of the Directors then in office shall be required to adopt, amend or repeal a Bylaw, if otherwise permissible, and the vote of all Directors then holding office shall be required to adopt a resolution dissolving the Corporation. Approval of a transaction in which one (1) or more Directors have an adverse interest shall require a majority of the disinterested Directors present, even though less than a quorum.

5.08 Informal Action by Directors and Attendance by Telephone. Action taken by a majority of the Directors without a meeting is nevertheless Board action if written consent to the action in question is signed by all the Directors and filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board whether done before or after the action so taken.

Any one (1) or more Directors may participate in a meeting of the Board by means of a conference telephone or similar device which allows all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other, and a person so participating in a meeting shall be deemed present in person at such meeting.

5.09 Compensation and Reimbursement of Expenses. Directors shall serve without compensation but may receive such reimbursement of expenses as the Board of Directors determines, by resolution, to be just and reasonable.

ARTICLE VI Officers

6.01 Number. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a Chairperson, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such Vice Chairperson, Alternate Secretaries, Alternate Treasurers and other officers as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, elect. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, but no officer may act in more than one (1) capacity where action of two (2) or more officers is required. All officers shall be qualified under these Bylaws to be Directors of the Corporation.

6.02 Election and Term. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors. Such election may be held at any regular or special meeting of the Board.

Each officer shall hold office until his death, resignation, retirement, removal, disqualification or until his successor is elected and qualified. The Board may appoint and may authorize any other officers that the Corporation may require. Each officer so appointed shall have the title, hold office for the period, have the authority, and perform the duties specified in these Bylaws or determined by the Board, provided that no officer shall serve a single term of more than three (3) years without reelection.

6.03 Removal and Resignation. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board with cause. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Corporation. The resignation shall take effect as of the date the notice is received or at any later time specified in the notice and, unless otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation need not be accepted to be effective.

6.04 Vacancies in Office. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular appointments to that office.

6.05 Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall supervise and control the management of the Corporation according to these Bylaws.

The Chairman shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chairperson and such other duties as may be described by the Board of Directors from time to time.

6.06 Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson, in the order of the election, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, shall, in the absence or disability of the Chairperson, perform the duties and exercise the powers of that office. In adaption, he/she shall perform such other duties and shall have such other powers as the Board of directors shall prescribe.

6.07 Secretary.

(a) Book of Minutes. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the Corporation's principal office or such other place as the Board may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings and actions of the board and of committees of the Board. The minutes of meetings shall include the time and place that the meeting was held and the names of those present at Board and committee meetings. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal office in North Carolina, a copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended to date.

(b) Notices, Seal and Other Duties. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and of committees of the Board required by these Bylaws to be given. The Secretary shall keep the corporate seal in safe custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the Bylaws may prescribe. The Secretary shall sign such instruments as may require the Secretary's signature, and, in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be assigned to the Secretary from time to time by the Chairperson or by the Board of Directors.

6.08 Treasurer.

(a) Books of Account. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and accounts of the Corporation's properties and transactions. The Treasurer shall send or cause to be given to the Directors such financial statements and reports as are required to be given by laws, by these Bylaws, or by the Board. The books of account shall be open to inspection by any Director at all reasonable times.

(b) Deposit and Disbursement of Money and Valuables. The Treasurer shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Corporation with such depositories as the Board may designate, shall disburse the Corporation's funds as the Board may order; shall render to the Board, when requested, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation; and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the Bylaws may prescribe.

(c) Bond. If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give the Corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the Board for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the Corporation of all of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in the possession of or under the control of the Treasurer on his or her death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office. The Treasurer shall, in general, perform all duties incident to the office and such other duties as may be assigned to the Treasurer from time to time by the Chairperson or by the Board of Directors.

6.09 Alternate Secretaries and Treasurers. The Alternate Secretaries and Alternate Treasurers shall, in the absence or disability of the Secretary or the Treasurer, respectively, perform the duties and exercise the powers of those offices and shall, in general, perform such other duties as shall be assigned to them by the Secretary or the Treasurer, respectively, or by the Chairperson or the Board of Directors.

6.10 Other Officers. The duties of other officers elected by the Board of Directors in Section 6.02 above shall be as prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

ARTICLE VII Executive and Other Committees

7.01 Creation of Committees. The Board of Directors may, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors, designate an Executive Committee and one or more other committees each consisting of two (2) or more Directors, one of whom shall be elected by the members of such committee to serve as Chairperson of said committee.

7.02 Authority of Committee. Any such committee, to the extent provided by the Board of Directors, shall have all the authority of the Board to exercise management of the Corporation except that no committee, regardless of any resolution by the Board of Directors to the contrary, may:

- (a) Fill vacancies on the Board;
- (b) Fix compensation of the Directors for serving on the Board or on any committee;
- (c) Amend or repeal Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws;
- (d) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;
- (e) Create any other committees of the Board or appoint the members of committees of the Board;
- (f) Approve any contract or transaction to which the Corporation is a party and in which one or more of its Directors has a material financial interest.

7.03 Executive Committee. The Executive Committee (if any) shall consult with and advise the officers of the Corporation in the management of its affairs and shall have and may exercise, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors creating such Executive Committee except as limited by 7.02 above, such powers of the Board of Directors as can be lawfully delegated by the Board.

7.04 Other Committees. All other committees shall have such functions and may exercise such power of the Board of Directors as can be lawfully delegated and to the extent provided in the resolution or resolutions creating such committee or committees except as limited by 7.02 above.

7.05 Meetings. Regular meetings of any Executive Committee and other committees may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the Executive Committee or such other committees, and special meetings of the Executive Committee or such other committees may be called by any member thereof upon two (2) days' notice to the other members of such committee, or on such shorter notice as may be agreed to in

writing by each of the other members of such committee, given either personally or in such manner provided in these Bylaws pertaining to notice for Board of Directors meetings.

7.06 Vacancies. Vacancies on the Executive Committee or on other committees shall be filled by the Board of Directors then in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

7.07 Quorum. At all meetings of the Executive Committee or other committees, a majority of the committee's members then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

7.08 Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee or other committees present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of such committee.

7.09 Minutes. The Executive Committee (if any) and such other committees as may be appointed, pursuant to the provisions of this Article VII, shall keep regular minutes of their proceedings and report the same to the Board of Directors when required.

ARTICLE VIII Indemnification

8.01 Indemnification in General. Any person, who at any time serves or has served as a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation for any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall be indemnified by the Corporation to the fullest extent permitted by law (but only to the extent not paid or reimbursed by insurance or any other third party) against: (a) all expenses, including attorney's fees, actually and necessarily incurred by such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative and whether or not brought by or on behalf of the Corporation, seeking to hold such person liable by reason of the fact of such capacity or the fact that such person is or was acting in such capacity; and (b) all payments made by such person in satisfaction of any judgment, money decree, fine, penalty or settlement for which such person may have become liable in any such action, suit or proceeding.

To the fullest extent permitted by law (but only to the extent not paid or reimbursed by insurance or any other third party) and when authorized by vote of a majority of the disinterested Directors, the Corporation may pay expenses incurred by a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the Director, officer, employee or agent to reimburse the Corporation for such amount if it shall ultimately be determined by the Corporation against such expenses.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 8.01 of this Article VIII, the Corporation shall not indemnify or agree to indemnify any person against expenses or other liabilities incurred by such person on account of any activities or omissions if: (i) such activities were not taken or such omissions were not made in good faith; (ii) such person did not reasonably believe: (A) in the case of conduct in his/her "official capacity" (as hereafter defined) with the Corporation, that such conduct was in the best interests of the Corporation; or (B) in the case of conduct not in his/her "official capacity" (as hereafter defined) with the Corporation, that such conduct was at least not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation; or (iii) such person: (A) is adjudged liable to the Corporation in connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation; or (B) is adjudged liable, in connection with a proceeding not by or in the right of the Corporation charging him/her with improper personal benefit, whether or not involving action in his/her "official capacity" (as hereafter defined), on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by him/her, nor shall the Corporation indemnify or agree to indemnify such person, incident to any criminal action or proceeding, with respect to actions or omissions of such person which he/she had reasonable cause to believe were unlawful. Indemnification hereunder in connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation that is concluded without a final adjudication on the issue of liability is limited to reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the proceeding. For purposes of this Article VIII, "official capacity" means: (i) when used with respect to a Director of the Corporation, his said office of Director of the Corporation; and (ii) when used with respect to an officer or employee of the Corporation, the office in the Corporation held by the officer or the employment relationship with the Corporation undertaken by the employee. "Official capacity" does not include service for any other foreign or domestic corporation or any partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise.

Indemnification under the provisions of this Article VIII shall apply only to claims arising after the date of adoption of these Bylaws. Claims which arose prior to such date may only be indemnified against upon compliance with all applicable laws, after full disclosure of such claims along with all material facts related thereto, and upon the approval of a majority of the Corporation's disinterested Directors or upon compliance with the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes Section 55A-8-31 or such other provision as may be prospectively substituted therefor.

Any person entitled to indemnification under this Article VIII of these Bylaws shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses incurred in enforcing his rights hereunder.

8.02 Determination of Indemnification. The Corporation shall not indemnify any person under this Article VIII unless authorized in the specific case after a determination the indemnification of the person has satisfied the conditions set forth herein. The determination shall be made: (i) by the Board of Directors of the Corporation by majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors not, at the time, "parties" (as hereafter defined) to the proceeding; or (ii) if such a quorum of Directors cannot be obtained, by majority vote of a committee duly designated

by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (in which designation Directors who are "parties" (as hereafter defined) to the proceeding may participate) consisting solely of two (2) or more Directors who are not, at the time, "parties" (as hereafter defined) to the proceeding; or (iii) by special legal counsel: (A) selected by the Board of Directors or its committee in the manner set forth in clauses (i) and (ii); or (B) if a quorum of Directors cannot be obtained as set forth in clause (i) and a committee cannot be designated as provided in clause (ii), selected by majority vote of the full Board of Directors (in which selection Directors who are "parties" (as hereafter defined) to the proceeding may participate). Authorization of indemnification and evaluation as to reasonableness of expenses shall be made in the same manner except that if the determination is made by special legal counsel, authorization of indemnification and evaluation as to the reasonableness of expenses shall be made by those entitled under clause (iii) set forth above to select such counsel. The termination of any action, suit, appeal or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner known or believed by such person not to be in or opposed to the best interests of the Corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, shall not create the presumption that such person had reasonable cause to believe such conduct was unlawful. For purposes of this Article VIII, "parties" means an individual who is or is threatened to be or individuals who are or are threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding.

8.03 Insurance. The Board of Directors may authorize the Corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who at any time serves or has served as a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving in such capacity at the request of the Corporation for any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such or acts in such capacity, whether or not the Corporation would have had the power to indemnify the person against such liability under the provisions of these Bylaws or of the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, as amended.

8.04 Indemnified Individual. Any person who at any time after the adoption of these Bylaws serves or has served as a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or serves or has served in such capacity at the request of the Corporation for any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be deemed to be doing or to have done so in reliance upon, and as consideration for, the right of indemnification provided herein. Such right shall inure to the benefit of the legal representatives of any such person and shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which such person may be entitled apart from this Article VIII of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE IX
Contracts, Checks and Deposits

9.01 **Contracts**. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer(s) or agent(s) to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

9.02 **Checks and Drafts**. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer(s) or agent(s) of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

9.03 **Deposits**. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as the Board of Directors shall direct.

ARTICLE X
Records and Reports

10.01 **Maintenance of Corporate Records**. The Corporation shall cause to be kept:

- (a) Adequate and correct books and records of account and
- (b) Minutes in written form of the proceedings of its Board of Directors and of committees of the Board.

All such records shall be kept by the Secretary of the Corporation at the Corporation's principal executive office, or, if its principal executive office is not in the State of North Carolina, at its principal business office in this state.

10.02 **Inspection of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws**. The Corporation shall keep, at its principal executive office or if its principal executive office is not in the State of North Carolina, at its principal business office in this state, the original or a copy of its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the officers and directors at all reasonable times during office hours. If the principal executive office of the Corporation is outside the State of North Carolina and the Corporation has no principal business office in this state, the Secretary shall, on the written request of any officer or director, furnish to that person a copy of its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date.

10.03 **Effective Date of the Bylaws**. These Bylaws shall become effective upon their adoption. Amendments hereto shall become effective immediately upon their adoption unless the

Board of Directors, in adopting them as hereinafter provided, provide that they are to become effective at some other date.

10.04 Inspection by Directors. Every Director shall have the absolute right, at any reasonable time, to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the Corporation and each of its subsidiary corporations if such exist. This inspection by a director may be made in person or by an agent or an attorney, and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

10.05 Annual Report. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to the Directors within 120 days after the end of the Corporation's fiscal year. That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year.
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities including trust funds.
- (c) The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted, to particular purposes.
- (d) The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted purposes.

The annual report shall be accompanied by any report on it of independent accountants or, if there is no such report, by the certificate of an authorized officer of the Corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the Corporation's books and records.

This requirement of an annual report shall not apply if the Corporation receives less than \$25,000 in gross receipts during the fiscal year, provided, however, that the information specified above for inclusion in an annual report must be furnished annually to all Directors who request it in writing.

10.06 Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications. No later than 120 days after the close of the Corporation's fiscal year, the Corporation shall prepare and mail or deliver to each director a statement of the amount and circumstances of any transaction or indemnification of the following kind:

- (a) Any transaction(s) in which the Corporation or, if such exists, its parent or its subsidiary was a party and in which any Director or officer of the Corporation, its parent or subsidiary had a direct or indirect financial interest.

(b) Any indemnification or advances aggregating more than \$10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer or director of the Corporation pursuant to Article VIII hereof.

ARTICLE XI
Prohibition Against Sharing Profits or Assets

No director, officer, employee or other person connected with the Corporation, or any other private individual, shall receive, at any time, of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the Corporation provided that this provision shall not prevent payment to any such person of reasonable compensation for services rendered or expenses incurred to or for the Corporation affecting of its purposes as shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XII
Affiliation with Other Organizations

12.01 This Corporation is a service entity which serves a function within the society of an organization known as Narcotics Anonymous. In so doing, it endorses the aims, goals, and purposes of that organization, and, in fact, by special endorsement in this Article, it operates under the guidelines of the "Twelve Traditions" as espoused by the Narcotics Anonymous Society.

12.02 All Directors and officers of this Corporation shall be and are subject to and will abide by the principles of the "Twelve Traditions" of Narcotics Anonymous Society as set forth in the pamphlet identified and entitled "Narcotics Anonymous" and shall further abide by motions adopted at each Regional Service Committee ("RSC") or ASC meeting and implement decisions reached by the RSC or ASC as they pertain to operation of this Corporation.

ARTICLE XIII
General Provisions

13.01 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the year ending July 31 unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors.

13.02 Amendments. Except as otherwise provided herein or by law, these Bylaws may be amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then holding office at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

I, _____, Secretary of CAROLINA REGIONAL SERVICE COMMITTEE, do hereby certify that the foregoing are the Bylaws of CAROLINA REGIONAL SERVICE COMMITTEE, adopted by the Directors at the organization meeting held as of this date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Corporation as of this 3rd of December, 1994

George N. Day
Secretary

[CORPORATE SEAL]

CAR-REG2.BYL MJWPC1